

Collaboration Collaboration Client User Guide GstarCAD 2019 GstarCAD 2019





# **Table of Contents**

1.	Over	view of GstarCAD Collaboration System	4
	1.1.	About GstarCAD Collaboration System	4
	1.2.	System Composition	5
2.	Gstar	CAD Collaboration Client Startup	6
	2.1.	Requirement to Start Working in GstarCAD Collaboration Client Platform	6
	2.2.	GstarCAD Collaboration Client Interface	7
	2.3.	Client Login and Logout Process	9
	2.3.2.	Login to Server as Common User Type using Collaboration Administration Tool	11
	2.3.3.	Login to Server as Power User Type	
	2.3.4.	Logout from Server as Power or Common User Type within Collaboration Explorer Panel	
3.	Colla	boration Explorer Panel	
4.		ng a Project from Server to Client Platform	
5.	Unde	rstanding GstarCAD Collaboration Methods	20
	5.1.	Asynchronous Collaboration Method	20
	5.2.	Synchronous Collaboration Method	21
6.	Work	ing on Current Project Directory	
	6.1.	About DWX File Format	
	6.2.	Add New Drawing on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	22
	6.3.	Rename and Delete Any File on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	
	6.3.1.	Add New Folder and Subfolder on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	24
	6.3.2.	Rename/Delete Folder or Subfolder on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	26
	6.3.3.	Import Folders/Subfolders with Files to Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	27
	6.3.4.	Export Folders with Files from Project Directory to Local PC (Common or Power User Type)	29
	6.3.5.	Export a Drawing File from Project Directory to Local PC (Common or Power User Type)	30
	6.3.6.	Add File to Folder from Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)	32
7.	Unde	rstanding Commit Process	34
	7.1.	Before Commit or Upload Modification on Files or Project Directory to Server	34
	7.2.	When Users Can Upload Modification on Files or Project to Server?	34

	7.3.	In What Situation Users Can't Commit or Upload Modification on Files or Project Directory to Server	r?35
	7.4.	Example of Committing or Uploading Modification on Files or Project Directory to Server	36
8.	Unde	rstanding Update and Refresh Process	39
	8.1.	Update Current Project Directory	39
	8.2.	Update Current Project Directory Manually	39
	8.3.	Configuring Refresh Interval for Synchronous and Asynchronous Collaboration Method	41
9.	Unde	rstanding Revert Process	44
	9.1.	Revert Process Applied to Files on Project Directory	44
	9.2.	Example of Revert Option Applied to Files on Project Directory	44
	9.3.	Revert Files with Trash Window Option	47
10.	File	s Version Management	50
	10.1.	Show Log Applied for Files Only	50
	10.2.	Show Log Applied for Folder, Subfolder or Project tree Directory	53
11.	Cor	iflict Processing	54
12.	All	About Drawing File Reference and Reference Rules	58
12.	<b>All</b> . 12.1.	About Drawing File Reference and Reference Rules Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules	
12.		-	59
12.	12.1.	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules	59 61
12.	12.1. 12.2.	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules	59 61 63
12.	12.1. 12.2. 12.3.	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options	59 61 63 64
12.	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference Rules	59 61 63 64 69
12.	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference Rules Importing a Reference Rule File into Current Drawing	59 61 63 64 69 71
	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference Rules Importing a Reference Rule File into Current Drawing Opening a Reference Rule File whether as Common or Power User Type	59 61 63 64 69 71 <b>72</b>
	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> <li>Cor</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference Rules Importing a Reference Rule File into Current Drawing Opening a Reference Rule File whether as Common or Power User Type <b>npare Versions of a Referenced Drawing File</b>	59 61 63 64 71 72 72
	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> <li>Cor</li> <li>13.1.</li> <li>13.2.</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules Changing Reference Drawing Color Reference Drawing Context Menu Options Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference Rules Importing a Reference Rule File into Current Drawing Opening a Reference Rule File whether as Common or Power User Type <b>npare Versions of a Referenced Drawing File</b> Compare Latest Revision of Drawing Reference	59 61 63 64 71 72 72 78
13.	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> <li>Cor</li> <li>13.1.</li> <li>13.2.</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules	59 61 63 64 71 72 72 78 80
13.	<ol> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.3.</li> <li>12.4.</li> <li>12.5.</li> <li>12.6.</li> <li>Cor</li> <li>13.1.</li> <li>13.2.</li> <li>Rea</li> </ol>	Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules	59 61 63 64 71 72 72 72 78 80

# 1. Overview of GstarCAD Collaboration System

#### 1.1. About GstarCAD Collaboration System

Developed by Gstarsoft, GstarCAD Collaboration System is an embedded plugin available for GstarCAD platform and applications that provides a multi-disciplinary collaborative design system to help CAD designers work together among a mutual drawing reference environment at the same time, reducing communication barriers across different groups and departments.



GstarCAD Collaboration System can be used under different conditions, such as project organization, drawing design, revision and management of medium, big or complex projects with ease and reliability.

What are the general benefits of implementing GstarCAD Collaboration System?

- ✓ Accelerate delivery of project blueprints schedule according to client or partner's needs.
- ✓ Decision making, collaboration and review are streamline shortening project life cycle.
- ✓ Protection and privacy of drawing data through own user company's network server reliability.
- ✓ Improve project management life cycle keeping high organization level and data resources.
- ✓ Keep a project structure safety by limiting access, permissions and assigning drawing rules for work team.
- ✓ Effectiveness when tracking changes, modifications or revisions of the latest drawing file version submitted.
- ✓ Better control and visualization of modifications and changes of relevant drawing data at any time.
- ✓ Timely handle project's conflicts and collisions to reduce design errors between work groups.
- ✓ System flexibility to work offline and online status.

## 1.2. System Composition

GstarCAD Collaboration System is mainly composed of a server and a group of clients. The client program is integrated directly into GstarCAD platform as a plugin. Drawings and file references creation, modification, submission and updating are done in the same user interface, making the operation and process much simpler.

Home Insert Annotation 3D Layout	View Manage Export Cloud Application Help Express Collaboration		
Administration Collaboration			Appearance ~
11 🖻 📔 🚺	G GstarCAD Collaboration Administration - 🗆 X		
:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168 $\vee$ min:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168	Berver: http://192.168.0.251:3001		
ArchReferences	Project User Group		
East North	Current project: admin/EcologicalHousingComplex v New Rename Delete Clone		
South West	Role Permission		
Floorplans     Level     Stee     Schedules     Schedules     Sections     ElectricaPlans     Level     SuntaryPlans     Level     Level     SuntaryPlans	e       e		
	User or group need to be assigned to a certain role. Permissions are set for roles.		
	X		
	Model /Layout1 / Layout2 /モー/	o 🗗 🖓 🗒 🗖 🐓	

The server program is provided for project administrators or project leaders to set up work groups, personnel and permissions for project participation. The server program needs to be installed separately and configured by the system administrator.

ect User Group				
urrent project: admin/EcologicalHou	usingComplex v New	Rename	Delete	Clone
Role	Permission			
晖 EE & & & &				
EcologicalHousingComplex	EcologicalHousingComplex	Role	Permission	
Rel administrator	ArchReferences     Elevations	administrator	Read & Write, E	kport 🗢
	Elevations	archref	Read & Write	▽
8 ad-peter	- North	🔚 sanitaryplans	Read-only	$\nabla$
admin as-huang	- 🗋 South	🔚 electricalplans	Read-only	$\nabla$
	- 🛅 West	structuring	Read-only	~
Analypeids     A		Project default	Read-only	~
User or group need to be assigned to a certain role. Permissions are set for roles.	First create folders of project on the left Select a folder and then set role's permis			

# 2. GstarCAD Collaboration Client Startup

## 2.1. Requirement to Start Working in GstarCAD Collaboration Client Platform

As a user or participant member of whether small, medium or complex project, before start working in the collaboration client platform is mandatory that a project administrator (server admin) configures all parameters of project structure including the correct IP address, port number, users and groups participant to be uploaded to local server.



The project administrator (server admin) has the power to create a user account with certain privileges according to project restrictions, which later the user or member can login and access (from the collaboration client platform) to the server where the project has been created.

Server: http://192.168.0	.251:3001	8 Login:	admin	Refresh Logout			
ject User Group							
S. & L ன				]Q			
Login name	/ Display	New User		×			
🖧 ad-peter	AD-Peter						
2, admin	admin	Login name:	ASP-ALONSO				
🖧 as-huang	AS-Huang	Display name:	AS-ALONSO				
Sei-harry	EI-Harry	Display harrie.	ASALONSO				
🖧 ei-william	EI-William	E-mail:	alonso@gstar.com				
🖧 id-diana	ID-Diana						
8 si-max	SI-Max	Password:					
& si-york	SI-York						
8 st-monica	ST-Monica	Pov	Power user who can manage projects on the server.				
🖧 st-trina	ST-Trina		Locked user, unlock before login.				
			sked user, driftock before login				
			OK	Cancel			

## 2.2. GstarCAD Collaboration Client Interface

GstarCAD Collaboration Client is a plugin integrated when you install GstarCAD platform. On the ribbon, you can go to **"Collaboration"** tab > Collaboration panel to see its commands.



**Collaboration Explorer:** Opens the **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel. You can also type **"\_GDNEXPLORER"** to open it.



**Collaboration Administration:** Opens the **"Login"** interface where user (power user type only) can access to the **"GstarCAD Collaboration Administration"** dialog box. You can also type **"\_GDNADMIN"** to open it.

, Login	×
Server:	192.168.0.251 ~ Port: 3001 ~
8 User:	admin
Password:	•••••
	Remember me
	Login Cancel Change password

**Options:** Opens the **"Options"** dialog box, under **"Collaboration Setting"** tab, where you can setup project directory update intervals and control reference drawing colors and other setting options. You can also type **"\_GDNOPTIONS"** to open it.

urrent profile:		< <unnamed f<="" th=""><th>vrofile&gt;&gt;</th><th>🧾 Current</th><th>drawing:</th><th>Dra</th><th>wing1.dwg</th><th></th></unnamed>	vrofile>>	🧾 Current	drawing:	Dra	wing1.dwg	
User Preferences D	raw	Selection set	Profiles	Cloud storage sync s	ettings	Collaboration Setting		4 >
Collaboration sett	-							
Refresh inter	val:	60	Minute	(s) Colla	boration ir	nterval: 1	Second(s)	
Color settings								
Curre	nt draw	ing		Added object		Before Modifie	ed	
Refer	ence dr	awing		Deleted object		After Modified	I	
Reference set	Reference settings							
Nested refer	ence ex	expansion : erences in rule editor :		<ul> <li>Do not expand</li> <li>Yes</li> </ul>		O Expand all		
Display neste	ed refer							
Display mode	ofrefe	rences:		Normal		⊖ Gray		
				OK	Ca	ncel Apply	/ Help	

**Register:** Opens the **"GstarCAD License Manager"** dialog box, where you can active GstarCAD Collaboration Client plugin. You can also type **"\_GDNREGISTER"** to open it.

■ License Information          License Type:       Network Dongle         License Key:       421         Product Version:       Collab 2019         Language:       ENG         Expiration date:       PERMANENT	GstarCAD Lie	cense Manager			- ×
License Key: 421 Product Version: Collab 2019 Language: ENG Expiration date: PERMANENT		License In	formation		
o <sup>≮</sup> Activate(A) C Return(R)		License Key: Product Version: Language:	421 Collab 2019 ENG		
	3	<b>♂</b> ^ Activ	rate(A)	C Return(R)	

**Help:** Opens the **"Help"** window where you can find all information about GstarCAD Collaboration System. You can also type **"\_GDNHELP"** to open it.

## 2.3. Client Login and Logout Process

After the project administrator has created a user or client type (power or common) in the server with a specific permission according to project restrictions, the client or user must login to access to project located on local server.

#### 2.3.1. Login to Server as Common User Type from Collaboration Explorer Panel

1.- In GstarCAD platform, go to "Collaboration Explorer" panel and click "Working Copy Management" button.



2.- In **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box, select **"Checkout project"** button. In **"Checkout"** dialog box, click **"..."** button to display the login interface.

Working Cop	y Mana	gement			X	Sever: http://192.168.0.251:3001
/orking direc	tory:	C:/Users/al	onso/Document	s/GstarCAD GDN		⊡ http://192.168.0.251:3001 ⊡ admin
Dwner	Na	ame	Login	Summary		- ArchitecturalSample - EcologicalHousingComplex
			Chec	kout project	Close	Login User: id-diana Checkout Cancel

3.- In **"Login"** interface, fill up IP address, port number, user name and password. The user's name and password are given by the project administrator. After filling up all users' information, press **"Login"** button. The common user type can login to server but can't access to **"GstarCAD Collaboration Administration"** interface.

B Se					
ue se	rver:	192.168.0.251	-	Port:	3001 👻
8 Use	er:	id-diana			
🖰 Pas	ssword:	•••••			
			Login		Cancel

4.- After login to server, all projects available will be shown as list. The user can select the project which will work in, then click **"Checkout"** button. The server will process and download to local user's workstation, the project directory created by the project administrator. Click **"Close"** button to access to **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box.

Sever: http://192.168.0.251:3001	Operation	File	*
⊡ http://192.168.0.251:3001	Added	ArchReferences/Elevations/	
admin	Added	ArchReferences/Elevations/East/	
ArchitecturalSample	Added	ArchReferences/Elevations/North/	
EcologicalHousingComplex	Added	ArchReferences/Elevations/South/	
EcologicalHousingcomplex	Added	ArchReferences/Elevations/West/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Floorplans/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Floorplans/Level1/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Floorplans/Level2/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Floorplans/Site/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/	
	Added	ArchReferences/Sections/	
	Added	ElectricalPlans/	E
	Added	ElectricalPlans/Level 1/	
	Added	ElectricalPlans/Level2/	
	Added	InteriorDesign/	
	Added	Plumbing and Piping/	
	Added	Plumbing and Piping/Level 1/	
	Added	Plumbing and Piping/Level2/	
	Added	Structuring/	
	Done		-
igin User: id-diana Checkout Cancel	Checking out: 20	/20 processed	lose

5.- In **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box, click **"Close"** button to deploy the project directory into **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙	Drawing1.dwg 🗙				
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	(				
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.2	🔄 Working Copy Mana	igement			<b>—</b> ×
🚊 🗁 ArchReferences	Madia a disastera a	Cullingralate	nee/Desument	s/GstarCAD GDN	
🚊 🗁 Elevations	Working directory:	C:/ Users/alo	nso/Document	S/GSCATCAD GDN	
East	Owner N	ame	Login	Summary	
🛅 North	http://192.168.0.251	-3001			_
🛅 South		rchitecturalS	id diana		
West	auriii A	renicecturals	. IU-Uldi i d		
Elevent Floorplans					
Level1					
Level2					
Site					
Schedules					
Sections					
ElectricalPlans					
Level1 					
Level2					
Plumbing and Piping					
Level1					
Level2			Che	ckout project Delete project	Close
Structuring					

#### 2.3.2. Login to Server as Common User Type using Collaboration Administration Tool

1.- In GstarCAD platform, go to **"Collaboration"** tab, click **"Collaboration Administration"** tool to display the **"Login"** interface.

G	D 🕞	8 😼 🖨	• • • • 2	2D Drafting		Ŧ					G	starCAD 2019	Professional - [Dra	wing1.dwg
	Home	Insert	Annotation	n 3D	Layout	View	Manage	Export	Cloud	Application	Help	Express	Collaboration	
Collabo Explo		Collaboration Administration	Options Re	gister He										
		Collabor	ation											

2.- Previously, the project administrator assigned an initial password for each member of the project. It is recommended to change the password given to prevent other members from using your account. Click **"Change password"** button and filling by the new password. Click **"Apply"** button to submit to server the new password.

互 Login			X	) (	G Change Password	ł	
Server:	192.168.0.251	<ul> <li>Port:</li> </ul>	Port: 3001 👻		Password:	•••••	
8 User:	id-diana						
A Password:	•••••				New password:	•••••	
					Confirmation:	•••••	
	Remember me		┥╽		ſ	Apply Cancel	
	Login Cancel	Chang	e password				

3.- Going back to **"Login"** interface, click **"Login"** button, the **"Server management"** dialog box popup a message to login failed. Only administrator or power user can access to collaboration administration tool.

Drawing1.dwg	λ
互 Login	X
Server:	192.168.0.251 • Port: 3001 •
8 User:	id-diana
Password:	•••••
	Remember me     Login     Cancel     Change password
Sever managemen	t 💌
	iailed er address, User name or Password is incorrect; ient privileges:Only administrator or power user can run this

#### 2.3.3. Login to Server as Power User Type

1.- In GstarCAD platform, go to **"Collaboration"** tab and click **"Collaboration Administration"** command on the ribbon to open the login dialog box.



2.- Fill up IP address, port number, user name and password. The user's name and password are given by the project administrator. After filling up all user's information, press **"Login"** button.

🗗 Login	×
Server:	192.168.0.251 V Port: 3001 V
8 User:	admin
🕆 Password:	•••••
	Remember me
	Login Cancel Change password

3.- The power user type can login to server and access to **"GstarCAD Collaboration Administration"** interface. A power user can add or delete users and groups previously created by a project administrator or by another power user but is not allowed to modify current project roles and permissions. A power user can create a new project independently to later be uploaded to the server.

			Cogin: admin		Refresh	Logout
ject User Gro	up					
<u>} 2 2 m</u>						Q
.ogin name /	Display name	E-mail	User type	Lock	Last login	
🔓 ad-peter	AD-Peter	Peter@gstarcad.com	Power user	No		
🔓 admin	admin		Power user	No	2018-09-29 13:22:40	
🔓 as-huang	AS-Huang	Huang@gstarcad.com	Power user	No		
🔒 ei-harry	EI-Harry	Harry@gstarcad.com	Common user	Yes		
🔓 ei-william	EI-William	William@gstarcad.com	Power user	No		
🔓 id-diana	ID-Diana	Diana@gstarcad.com	Power user	No	2018-09-28 17:09:59	
S si-max	SI-Max	Max@gstarcad.com	Common user	No		
Si-york	SI-York	York@gstarcad.com	Common user	No		
🛯 st-monica	ST-Monica	Monica@gstarcad.com	Common user	No		
🔓 st-trina	ST-Trina	Trina@gstarcad.com	Power user	No		

#### 2.3.4. Logout from Server as Power or Common User Type within Collaboration Explorer Panel

1.- Whether you are common or power user, you must checkout, login in and deploy the project directory into collaboration explorer panel. Then right-click on top of project tree and select **"Logout"** option.

Collaboration Explorer		Φ X
1 1 6 ti 🗄 🕼		
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.)	0. 251	) 🗸
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.16)	3.0.2	51)
🚊 🗁 ArchReferences		New Drawing
Elevations	L.	New Reference Rule
Floorplans		New Folder
Evel1	-	
Floor Plan Level 1.dwx	L,	Add File
Level2	<b>C</b>	Import Folder
🗄 🗂 Site	D	Export Folder
in the second s		Show Log
i Sections	Là.	3
ElectricalPlans		Update
Evel1		Commit
i Level2		Revert
interiorDesign	1	Resolve Conflicts
Evel 1		
Level 1 IDS for Client Reviewing.	Ê	Trash Window(T)
Plumbing and Piping	₽	Levie
Reference rules	1 million	Login
Floor Plan Level 1_Rule1.drf	€	Logout 'fp-alonso'
i≟ <sup>[</sup> ] Structuring	2	Change the password(P)
	_	

# 3. Collaboration Explorer Panel

The "Collaboration Explorer" panel displays current project directory loaded from the server. The panel offers different options for load projects, reference drawing settings, drafting synchronization, commit and update files related to the project.

1.- Working Copy Management: Opens the "Working Copy Management" dialog box. You can browse a project directory, delete or checkout a project.

2.- Options: Opens the "Options" dialog box, under "Collaboration Setting" tab, where you can control a reference drawing colors and other setting options. You can also type "\_GDNOPTIONS" to open it.

3.- Projects List: Shows loaded projects that can be selected from the drop-down list.

4.- Real-time Collaboration: Turns on/off the real-time collaboration feature allowing two users work at same time in each other referenced drawing. Every saved modification of a drawing file will be committed to the server automatically, so the referenced drawing will be updating automatically.

5.- Reference Change to Gray: Turns on/off the whole referenced drawing into gray color or revert its original color status.

6.- Commit: Commits, submit or upload all modifications related to project files and directory.

7.- Update: Allows to download the latest version of project directory (folders or files modified).

Users can hover the cursor over an existing folder information. If you hover the cursor over a file, a small tip will pop, so you can see; drawing name, latest version and server status. If you hover the cursor over a folder, you can see what permission the project administrator assigned you according to roles or groups. It is recommended to read the GstarCAD Collaboration Server Management Guide  $\rightarrow$ 

New Project Configuration 
Assigning Permissions for Folder.





ArchReferences

Elevations

😑 🗁 East

🗄 🗁 North

🖻 🗁 West

ė.

South

Elevation East.dwx

West

Floor Plan Level 1.dwx

Permission: Read-only

Elevation North.dwx

The **"Collaboration Explorer"** displays all folders and related files that are readable by the current user in a tree structure. The top of the tree is the project name. Users can expand folders and subfolders to see different kind of files formats attached, files referenced or nested referenced. You can create new folders, subfolders and drawings, add files, open and modify selected DWX drawing files in your own authorized folder, set reference rules, and insert other drawing references into current drawing according to reference rules.



Folders, subfolders and files on current project directory may have different options regarding what action you need to perform. If you right-click a folder, subfolder or file, it will display different command options from context menu. The activated options are the actions that can be performed on the current branch.



# 4. Loading a Project from Server to Client Platform

1.- As client (power or common user type) you need to login with your correct account information to access to server where is located the project. Then follow the steps bellow.

亏 Login	×
Server:	192.168.0.251 ~ Port: 3001 ~
8 User:	admin
A Password:	•••••
	Remember me
	Login Cancel Change password

2.- Open the "Collaboration Explorer" and select "Working Copy Management" button to access its dialog box.



3.- In **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box, you can change default project's working directory (optional) according to your preference. Click **"Browse"** button, search a new path, folder or create a new folder. Then press **"OK"** button.

Vorking director	y: C:/Users/win 10/Docum	ents/GstarCAD GDI	N				
Owner http://192.168.J	Name 0.251:3001 EcologicalHousingComplex	Login admin	Summary		Folder: Hou	Collaboration Project Drawing Samples Architecture Reference Drawings cme Electrical Installations House Complex Project Interior Design Sanitary Installations Structuring Interior Structuring Complex Project	^ •
<	C	neckout project	Delete project C	> ose	Make New Fo	lder OK Ca	ancel:

4.- A warning pops up, telling how to process existing project directories (folder and subfolders) and files when moving to new path. You can choose between three options:

**Moving to the new working directory may be time-consuming:** This option will move all the projects (including their files attached) previously loaded and stored from default to new path. It could be a time-consuming if you load many projects of big size.

**Delete them all:** This option deletes all projects (including their files attached) previously loaded and stored in older path. The user must checkout again the correspondent project to work with and it will be loaded and stored in the new path assigned by the user.

**Leave them in place:** This option leaves all projects (including their files attached) previously loaded and stored in older path. The user must checkout again the correspondent project to work with and it will be loaded and stored in the new path assigned by the user.

Working a	lirectory: C:/Users/win 10/Docu	uments/GstarCAD GDN		
Owner http://1				
<				>

5.- Going back to **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box, you can delete a project from project list. Select a project from list and press **"Delete Project"** button. Make sure if you want to delete the project from the working directory. Press **"Yes"** button to confirm.

orking directo	ory: C:/Users/win 10/Docume	ents/GstarCAD	GDN	
)wner	Name	Login	Summary	
http://192.168	3.0.251:3001			
admin	EcologicalHousingComplex	admin		
GstarCAD	Do you could want to delete this	project from .	our working director	×
GstarCAD	Do you really want to delete this	project from y	our working director	
GstarCAD	Do you really want to delete this	project from y		
GstarCAD	Do you really want to delete this			

6.- After confirming project deletion, notice the **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel will delete the project.

laboration Explorer	Ψ×	Working Copy	Management			×
	~	Working director	y: C:/Users/win 10,	/Documents/GstarCAD G	DN	
		Owner	Name	Login	Summary	

7.- Now you are ready to checkout a project from server. In **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box, press **"Checkout project"** button. In **"Checkout"** dialog box, you can browse to server by **"Login"** first. Then the project(s) located in the server will be loaded and shown in the dialog box.

Working Copy M		0/Documents/GstarCAD (	GDN	×	🖻 - admi				٦
Owner	Name	Login	Summary		Login	cologicalHousingCom	piex		>
					Server:	192.168.0.251 admin	→ Port:	3001	~
					A Password:	•••••	Login	Cancel	
				>					

8.- Select the project loaded and press **"Checkout"** button.

Checkou	t		×
Sever:	http://192.168.0.25	51:3001	~
	192.168.0.251:3001 nin EcologicalHousingCom	<u>plex</u>	
Login User:	admin	Checkout	Cancel

9.- The project directories and files attached will be processed from server to be downloaded and stored on local machine directory path assigned by the user. Then press **"Close"** button to finish the process.

Operation	File	^
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/How I do.png	
Added	ArchReferences/Sections/	
Added	ArchReferences/Sections/Building Offices Section.dwx	
Added	ArchReferences/Sections/Building Section.dwx	
Added	ArchReferences/Sections/Longitudinal Section.dwx	
Added	ElectricalPlans/	
Added	ElectricalPlans/Level 1/	
Added	ElectricalPlans/Level 1/Electrical Installations FP Level 1.dwx	
Added	ElectricalPlans/Level2/	
Added	ElectricalPlans/Level2/Electrical Installations FP Level 2.dwx	
Added	InteriorDesign/	
Added	InteriorDesign/Interior Design sample 1.dwx	
Added	Plumbing and Piping/	
Added	Plumbing and Piping/Level 1/	
Added	Plumbing and Piping/Level2/	
Added	Plumbing and Piping/Level2/Water Lines FPLevel 2.dwx	
Added	Structuring/	
Added	Structuring/Structural Scheme.dwx	
Done		

10.- The project will be loaded into project list of **"Working Copy Management"** dialog box. Press **"Close"** button to load the project into **"Collaboration Explorer"** Panel.

Working Cop	y Management			2
Vorking directo	ory: C:/Users/win 10/Docum	nents/GstarCAD G	DN	
Owner http://192.168	Name 8.0.251:3001	Login	Summary	
admin	EcologicalHousingComplex	admin		
c.				

**Remark:** The checkout functionality not only is designed to load and deploy a desire project from server but also users can update project related files and directories to local machine and work online or offline anytime.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251) $\sim$
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)
🚊 🗁 ArchReferences
Elevations
East
Elevation East.dwx
North
Elevation North.dwx
C South □-√→ West
□/-→ West 
Floorplans
Floor Plan Level 1.dwx
Interior Design sample1
🗄 🗁 Site
Site.dwx
🖶 🗋 Split Site South.dwx
🔄 🗟 Splite Site North
Splite Site North.dwx
Split Site South
├── Schedules
How I do.png
Building Offices Section.dwx
Longitudinal Section.dwx
ElectricalPlans
🖨 🗁 Level1
Electrical Installations FP Level 1.dwx
🗄 🗁 Level2
Electrical Installations FP Level 2.dwx
🖶 🦳 InteriorDesign
Interior Design sample1.dwx
Plumbing and Piping
Level1     Level2

# 5. Understanding GstarCAD Collaboration Methods

GstarCAD Collaboration System provides two kinds of collaboration methods according to project members need.

## 5.1. Asynchronous Collaboration Method

The workflow of the asynchronous collaboration method is based on creating, adding, modifying, saving, committing (loading) and updating (downloading) folders and files from current project directory to the server manually. Different teams (participants in the project) can work in their respective folders (with the appropriate permissions) referring to the drawings created by other teams. Any modification to the project directory made by the project administrator or any participating member must be uploaded to the server for further review. Asynchronous collaboration method improves project documentation and organization.



### 5.2. Synchronous Collaboration Method

The synchronous collaboration method is based on working at same time with referenced drawing files. Two or more participating members (same or different disciplinary teams with right permissions) can reference their drawing files to one another, allowing view and work upon the referenced drawing at same time in different client platforms. Any drawing modification done by a participant will be loaded to server automatically after saving it, avoiding press **"Commit"** button from the collaboration explorer each time saving a drawing file. What's more, the drawing file update time can be configured individually according to users need. Synchronous collaboration method speeds up blueprint completion between users at same time.



# 6. Working on Current Project Directory

#### 6.1. About DWX File Format

GstarCAD Collaboration System uses a special and unique drawing file format created for the collaboration system. The advantage of this format is that it can carry out incremental drawing data storage transfer, historical version management and backtracking. It cannot be used away from the collaborative design specific environment, ensuring the safety of the drawings. DWX files can be generated by creating a new DWG file or by adding a DWG file to the right-click menu of the project list. DWX files can be exported to standard DWG files if needed. After the user logs in and selects the project, the **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel displays all folders and related files that are readable by the current user in a tree structure.

#### 6.2. Add New Drawing on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)

1.- In GstarCAD platform, go to **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, right-click the project name to deploy a context menu. Then select **"New Drawing"** option.



2.- Input a proper name and press **"OK"** button. The new DWX drawing will be added at button of project tree and by default will be open.

ollaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙	My Team Reference.dwx 🗙
🥵 🛃 🛃 🛃 🛃	
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	G Input name X
admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	Name: My Team Reference
ArchReferences	Name: My Team Reference v
Elevations	
East	OK Cancel
- North	
South	
West	
🖨 🗁 Floorplans	
Level1	<u></u>
🛅 Level2	1
- 🗋 Site	
Schedules	
Sections	
ElectricalPlans	
Level	
InteriorDesign	
Plumbing and Piping	
Level1	
Level2	
Structuring	
My Team Reference.dwx	

3.- You can also create new drawings within a subfolder as well. Right-click a subfolder, select **"New Drawing"** option. Input a proper name and done! Notice this time, the subfolder and the top of the subfolder (hierarchically) will show an arrow up (red color) that means any new drawing file or reference added to a subfolder needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision. Any user type (common or power) can upload or commit files to server only if is authorized by the project administrator under roles and permissions.



#### 6.3. Rename and Delete Any File on Project Directory (Common or Power User

#### Type)

1.- To rename any file on project directory, make sure the correspondent file or reference is not open, just right-click the file and select **"Rename"** Option. Rename it properly and done!

Collaboration Explorer	ф.	× My Team Reference.dwx ×
🚯 📰 🛃 🕒 💽		
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.2	51)	-
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192 - ArchReferences	.168.0	.2
Elevations		
East		
North		
🛅 South		
West	B	Open
Electron Floorplans	6	Reference
🖻 🖓 Level1	L#	New Reference Rule
Floor Plan Level 1.	a	Ref change to Gray
Site		Export
Schedules	Ē.	Rename
Sections	X Delete	
ElectricalPlans	~	
🛅 Level1		Show Log
Level2		Update
InteriorDesign	D.	Commit
Plumbing and Piping     Level1	3	Revert
Level2	0	Compare with latest revision
Structuring	8	Compare with specified revision
	_	
		23

2.- To delete any file on project directory, make sure the correspondent file or reference is not open, just right-click the file and select **"Delete"** Option.



#### 6.3.1. Add New Folder and Subfolder on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)

1.- In GstarCAD platform, go to **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, right-click the project name to deploy a context menu. Then select **"New Folder"** option.



2.- Input new folder name and done! Notice the created folder will be added on project tree alphabetically, showing an arrow up (red color) that means any folder or subfolder added needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision. Any user type (common or power) can upload or commit files to server only if is authorized by the project administrator under roles and permissions assigned.



3.- You can also add a subfolder over existing one. Right-click a folder or subfolder and select **"New Subfolder"** option. Enter a name and done! Notice the created subfolder will show an arrow up (red color) that means any subfolder added needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision.

Collaboration Explorer	<b>д х</b>	
		Collaboration Explorer 📮 >
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)		
admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.1	68.0.2	[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)
🖨 🔄 ArchReferences		
Elevations		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.2
East		📄 🔄 ArchReferences
North		Elevations
🛅 South		East
📄 West		- 🗋 North
E Floorplans		South
🖃 🕞 Level1		West
Floor Plan Level 1.dv	vx	E Floorplans
Level2		Evel1
Site		Floor Plan Level 1.dwx
Schedules		Level2
Sections		Site
Calculations	ew Drawing	Sections
ElectricalPlans	ew Reference Rule	Calculations
		Foundation
	ew Subfolder	
	dd File	ElectricalPlans
Plumbing and Piping	nport Folder	Level1
Level1	kport	
Level?		

#### 6.3.2. Rename/Delete Folder or Subfolder on Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)

1.- To rename any folder or subfolder on project directory, just right-click the folder or subfolder and select **"Rename"** Option. Rename it properly and done! Notice the renamed folder or subfolder will show an arrow up (red color) that means any folder or subfolder renamed needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision. Any user type (common or power) can upload or commit files to server only if is authorized by the project administrator under roles and permissions assigned.



2.- To delete any folder or subfolder on project directory, just right-click the file and select "Delete" Option.



#### 6.3.3. Import Folders/Subfolders with Files to Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)

1.- To import folders (including files) to an existing folder of the project directory, right-click a folder or subfolder and select **"Import Folder"** option. Then select a folder you want import and press **"Select"** button.



2.- In "Import Folder" dialog box, you can select different options;

**As a subfolder of the selected node:** The folders imported will be attached as subfolder of the selected folder or subfolder of the project directory.

**Merge into the root node of the project:** The folders imported will merge the selected folder or subfolder of the project directory.

**Convert to reference rules:** The files within folders imported will be converted as reference rule file. A reference rule file created or added into project directory will adopt (\*. DRF) file format extension by default.

Leave Xrefs as is: All Xrefs within folders imported will keep their original file format extension.

Import: Allows import non-dwg files that are attached to folders.

**Ignore:** Non-dwg files within folders will be not imported.

Let's select the following options; As a subfolder of the selected node, Leave Xrefs as is, and Import. The press **"OK"** button to confirm.

urce : F:\GDN\Schedules	
As a subfolder of the selected node.	
$\odot$ Merge into the root node of the project.	
refs conversion:	Non-drawing files import
Convert to reference rules.	Import
Leave Xrefs as is.	© Ignore
	OK Cancel

The **"Folder Conversion"** dialog box will pop up. This dialog box will collect, and process information of drawings and any other file attached to folders to be converted. Press **"Close"** button.

Conversion	
Collecting information of drawings to convert	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Beams Excel.xlsx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Availables.dwx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Excel.xlsx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.pdf import s	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.xlsx import s	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Excel.xlsx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Type.dwx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx import successfully.	
File ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Type.dwx import successfully.	
Import finished successfully.	

At **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, you will see the imported folders with their respective files attached. All (\*.DWG) files previously attached to folders will be converted as (\*.DWX) format. Notice you can attach different files like Microsoft Excel, PDF, and many others more. Later you can open those files to further revision or modification.

**Remark:** Each subfolder attached will show an arrow up (red color) which means needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision. Any user type (common or power) can upload or commit files to server only if is authorized by the project administrator under roles and permissions assigned.



#### 6.3.4. Export Folders with Files from Project Directory to Local PC (Common or Power User Type)

1.- Right-click the folder or subfolder you want to export, select **"Export"** option from context menu. Then choose the path where all folders will be exported and press **"Select"** button.

Level2			Nom	hre	Fecha de modifica	Tino
Site						•
C Schedules				eferences Fom Project	10/9/2018 2:37 PM	Carpeta d
🖕 🗁 Schedules		New Drawing	🤳 S	chedules	10/9/2018 10:13 AM	Carpeta o
🖶 🗁 Beams		New Reference Rule				
Beams Excel.xlsx	_	New Subfolder				
Structural Beams.dwx						
Doors		Add File				
Doors Availables.dwx		Import Folder				
Doors Excel.xlsx	D	Export				
Other Components           More Components Excel.pdf	L.	Rename				
More Components Excel.pla		Delete				
□- ② Walls						
Walls Excel.xlsx		Show Log				
Walls Type.dwx		Update				
Windows		Commit				
Windows Excel.xlsx		Revert	٠			•
Windows Type.dwx						

2.- In "Export Folder" dialog box, you can check the following options;

**Merge referenced drawings into target:** All folders and files to be exported will keep same structure by default. **Export non-drawing files:** All non-drawing files like PDF, Microsoft Excel and other files attached will be exported in their respective folder. If this option is unchecked, non-drawing files will be not exported.

You can let these options checked by default, then press **"Confirm"** button to start exporting folders and files to selected path. The **"Folder Conversion"** dialog box will pop up. This dialog box will collect, and process information of drawings and any other file attached to folders to be exported. Press **"Close"** button.

	Conversion	
Export Folder 🛛 🔀	Collecting information of drawings to convert	
	File 'Beams/Beams Excel.xlsx' export successfully.	
urce: ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/	File 'Beams/Structural Beams.dwg' export successfully.	
area. Arenterereres seriedules seriedules	File 'Doors/Doors Availables.dwg' export successfully.	
	File 'Doors/Doors Excel.xlsx' export successfully.	
Merge referenced drawings into the target.	File 'Other Components/More Components Excel.pdf' export successfully.	
Export non-drawing files.	File 'Other Components/More Components Excel.xlsx' export successfully.	
Export non-drawing nes.	File 'Walls/Walls Excel.xlsx' export successfully.	
	File 'Walls/Walls Type.dwg' export successfully.	
Confirm Cancel	File 'Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx' export successfully.	
	File 'Windows/Windows Type.dwg' export successfully.	
	Export finished successfully.	
		Close

Then you can confirm if the exportation process is successful by going to the assigned path.

lew Volume (F:	) ▶ GDN	<ul> <li>References l</li> </ul>	Fom Projec	t 🕨 Sched	ules 🕨
Incluir en bib	olioteca 🔻	Compartir	con 🔻	Grabar	Nue
Nor	nbre	<u>^</u>		Fe	cha de
	Beams			10	/9/2018
	Doors			10	/9/2018
	Other Com	ponents		10	/9/2018
	Walls			10	/9/2018
	Windows			10	/9/2018

**Remark:** To export folders and subfolders with files attached from project directory to local pc you must be a common or power user type with correct authorization by the project administrator based on roles and permissions. For example, if you are set up as common or power user type by the project administrator with write & read, export or read-only, export permission, exporting folders and files attached is allowed. If you are set up as any user type mention above with any other permission, exporting folders and files attached are not allowed. It is recommended to read the **GstarCAD Collaboration Server Management Guide**  $\rightarrow$ **New Project Configuration** $\rightarrow$ **Assigning Permissions for Folder**.

#### 6.3.5. Export a Drawing File from Project Directory to Local PC (Common or Power User Type)

1.- Make sure the folder or subfolder that you are working with has Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission. You can create a new drawing or add a file. Let's create a file, right-click the subfolder and select **"New Drawing"** option.

Collaboration Explorer 4 >	ĸ
🗐 🗐 🗐 🚭 📭 🗐	
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.2 $\sim$	
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	
	Ш
Elevations	Ш
East	Ш
···· 🛅 North	
North	
	Ш
Permission: Read _Write, Export	Ш
🗄 👘 Site	
🖃 🗁 Schedules	
🚊 🗁 Schedules	
⊕ <u>⊡</u> Beams	
Doors	
Other Components	
Halls	
Sections	



2.- Enter a name for drawing file and press **"OK"** button to confirm. The drawing will be added under selected subfolder and will be opened automatically, you can start draw from scratch until finish your design.



3.- Then right-click the DWX file and select **"Export"** option from context menu. In **"Save as"** dialog box, you can choose, the path or folder where the file will be stored, select a DWG version from list and press **"Save"** button. The DWX file will be saved as DWG file format.

		Save in:	cme		/ G 🤌 I	≫▼	
ation Explorer     Ar chi tecturalSample](192.168.0.2)   min:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251) ArchReferences Elevations Elevations East North North North Elevation NE.dwx Port South Floorplans Ste Ste Schedules Schedules Schedules Schedules Other Component Other Component North Elevation Delete	History Doarne Favorites Desktop	CORTES ELEVACIONE COUPLEX.dwg FLAT A CORTES.dwg FLAT A ELEVACIONES FLAT B ELEVACIONES FLAT B CORTES.dwg FLAT B ELEVACIONES FLAT B ELEVACIONES FLAT B ELEVACION N PLANIMETRIA.dwg	DWG File DWG File DWG File DWG File	Size 7,216 KB 4,640 KB 4,003 KB 1,548 KB 1,913 KB 2,968 KB 1,292 KB 1,049 KB 622 KB	Date modified 11/1/2017 11:24 AM 11/1/2017 11:09 AM 11/1/2017 11:09 AM 11/1/2017 11:09 AM 11/1/2017 11:04 AM 11/1/2017 11:01 AM 9/29/2018 3:42 PM 10/15/2018 10:58 11/1/2017 10:55 AM	Preview:	
	New Reference Rule Ref back to color Export Rename		AuscAn 2 AuscAn 2 Aus	2118 Drawing(*.dwg) 2118 Drawing(*.dwg) 2113 (T.2013) Drawing 100(T.2010) Drawing 100(T.2007) Drawing 2004(T.2004) Drawing 200	((*.dwg) ((*.dwg) ((*.dwg) ((*.dwg) ing(*.dwg) s) s) st) st) st) st) st) st) st)	Save Cancel	

#### 6.3.6. Add File to Folder from Project Directory (Common or Power User Type)

1.- You can add different kind of files format to project directory. Right-click the folder or subfolder you want add file, select **"Add File"** option from context menu. Then choose all the files (dwg, pdf, excel, image, video, etc) to be added and press **"Open"** button.

Floorplans		elect File			_		×
Level2		Look in:	Files to be Added to Project	- 🧿 💋 📂			
Site			Nombre	Fecha de modifica	Тіро	Tamaño	
Schedules			Budget worksheet for house.png	10/9/2018 4:23 PM	Imagen PNG	317 KB	
Schedules		story	How I calculate Budget.mp4	7/20/2017 11:53 AM	Vídeo MP4	8,025 KB	
H Beams	New Drawing		Provide the second seco	10/9/2018 2:51 PM	Archivo DWG	984 KB	
+ Doors	🛗 New Reference Rule		Schedule Calculation.xlsx	10/9/2018 2:23 PM 3/24/2017 2:38 PM	Microsoft Excel Adobe Acrobat	9 KB 642 KB	
• Other Components	🕞 New Subfolder	doc	Schedule Modifications.pdf	10/9/2018 4:17 PM	Imagen JPEG	370 KB	
• D Walls	Add File	=	- Schedule Pictijpg	10/3/2010 4.17 PW	inagentreo	570 KB	
	🚉 Import Folder	4					
Sections	Export	voritos					
ElectricalPlans							
Level1	🔒 Rename						
Level2	🗙 Delete	critorio					
🗁 InteriorDesign	D Changlan						
Facade.dwx	how Log		File name: "Budget worksheet for h	ouse.png" "How I calculat	e Budget.mp4" "Refere	nces.dw 👻	Open
Plumbing and Piping	📮 Update		Files of type: All Files(*,*)				Cancel
Structuring	Commit	REC	All Piles( . )				Caricer
	B Revert		Locate Find File	····			

2.- In **"Add File"** dialog box, all the files selected will be processed and added to project directory. Press **"Close"** button to close dialog box.

Operation	File	
ок	Budget worksheet for house.png	
OK	How I calculate Budget.mp4	
OK	References.dwg	
OK	Schedule Calculation.xlsx	
OK	Schedule Modifications.pdf	
OK	Schedule Pic1.jpg	
•	III	Þ
		Close

3.- Now all the files have been added to its respective folder.



**Remark:** After added all files, the folder will show an arrow up (red color) which means needs to be uploaded to the server to further revision. Any user type (common or power) can upload or commit files to server only if is authorized by the project administrator under roles and permissions assigned.

# 7. Understanding Commit Process

All project participants can open, view, edit, reference, and submit drawing files or documents according to their permissions. In GstarCAD Collaboration System, designers can work on a drawing file drawn by other project members and can get latest drawing modifications, view and compare drawing changes, or trace back to a historical version at any time.

As power or common user, you must understand and assume what role and permissions the project administrator assigned you. It is recommended to read the **GstarCAD Collaboration Server Management Guide**→ **New Project Configuration**→**Assigning Permissions for Folder**.



## 7.1. Before Commit or Upload Modification on Files or Project Directory to

#### Server....

1.- Internet connection and network availability (Power and common user type).

2.- Setup properly the GstarCAD Collaboration Server options (Project administrator as power user type by default).

3.- Setup roles and Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission for project participants (Project administrator). 4.- Login, load and deploy related project from GstarCAD Collaboration Server to GstarCAD platform (Power and common user type).

## 7.2. When Users Can Upload Modification on Files or Project to Server?

In what situation?	Project Administrator	Power and Common User Type	Permissions Assigned on Project Folders				
<ol> <li>When creating, renaming or deleting a folder or subfolder on project directory.</li> </ol>	Authorized		Read & Write or Read & Write, Export				
2 When creating, renaming or deleting a drawing file or any other file format on project directory.	Authorized		Authorized		Read & Write or Read & Write, Export		
3 When adding, renaming or deleting a drawing file or any other file format on project directory.	Authorized		Read & Write or Read & Write, Export				
4 When importing a folder attached with different file formats on project directory.	Authorized		Read & Write or Read & Write, Export				
5 When creating a new reference rule for drawing file on project directory.	Authorized		Authorized		Authorized		Read & Write or Read & Write, Export
6 When saving a drawing file on project directory.	Aı	Read & Write or Read & Write, Export					

## 7.3. In What Situation Users Can't Commit or Upload Modification on Files or

#### **Project Directory to Server?**

1.- There is no internet connection.

2.- Power or common user has Read-only, Read-only & Export, or Deny all permission assigned by project administrator.

3.- Power or common user creates, renames, deletes a folder or subfolder on project directory without having Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission.

4.- Power or common user creates, renames, deletes a drawing file or any other file format on project directory without having Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission.

ElectricalPlans     Level1     Level2     Plumbing an Dising     Level1     Level2     Level1     Level2     Premission: Read-only     Structuring	l
--	---

5.- Power or common user adds, renames, deletes a drawing file or any other file format on project directory without having Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission.

6.- Power or common user imports a folder attached with different file formats on project directory without having Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission.

7.- Power or common user creates a new reference rule for drawing file on project directory without having Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission.

8.- Power or common user makes modifications to drawing file (Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission for correspondent folder) but do not save it at time.

Iadmin:ArchitecturalSample](192       Commit         Image: Source of the second se			
ArchReferences       Operation       File         Elevations       Command       Update to revision 'HEAD'         East       Command       Update to revision 'HEAD'         South       Added       InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx         West       Unauthorized       InteriorDesign         Stet       Schedules       InteriorDesign         Sections       Image: Schedules       Image: Schedules         ElectricalPlans       Image: Schedules       Image: Schedules         Elevel1       25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s	[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192		
Operation       File         Operation       File         Command       Update to revision 'HEAD'         Fetching content       Please wait         Done       Added         Added       InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx         Unauthorized       InteriorDesign         Aborted       Morted         Schedules       InteriorDesign         Sections       Image: Schedules         ElectricalPlans       Image: Schedules         Level1       25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s			
Command Update to revision 'HEAD' Fetching content Please wait North North South Added InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx Unauthorized InteriorDesign Aborted Schedules Schedules Sections Level1 Level2 Command Update to revision 'HEAD' Please wait Done Added InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign InteriorDesign InteriorDesign InteriorDesign Aborted InteriorDesign InteriorD		Operation	File
Image: South       Fetching content       Please wait         Done       Done         Added       InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx         Image: South       InteriorDesign         Site       InteriorDesign         Schedules       InteriorDesign         Schedules       Image: Sections         ElectricalPlans       Image: State sections         Level1       25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s		Command	Update to revision 'HEAD'
Done       Added       InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx       Horized       InteriorDesign       InteriorDes		Fetching content	Please wait
West     Added     InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx       Floorplans     InteriorDesign       Site     Aborted       Schedules     Schedules       Sections     Image: Schedules       Level1     25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s		Done	
Floorplans     Site     Schedules     Sections     Level1     Level2     Schedules		Added	InteriorDesign/Living Room Sketch.dwx
Site     Sochedules     Sochedules     Sections     Consections     Conse		Unauthorized	InteriorDesign
Schedules     Schedules     Sections     ElectricalPlans     Level1     25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s		Aborted	
Gereine Schedules     Sections     Sections     ElectricalPlans     Level1     Section     Level2		1	
Sections  Consections  Consect		/	
ElectricalPlans  ElectricalPlans  Control  ElectricalPlans  Control  ElectricalPlans  Control  ElectricalPlans  ElectricalPla			
Level 25.19 KB transferred, transferring at 71 Bytes/s	_ /	•	
Level2	TT. //		
		25.19 KB transferred	d, transferring at 71 Bytes/s
- V Theriorizesian			
		1.1	
Living Room Sketch.dwx			
Plumbing and Piping	TT 2 1 2		
Level1			
Level2	Level2		

# 7.4. Example of Committing or Uploading Modification on Files or Project Directory to Server

1.- Whether you are common or power user, make sure if the folder you are working has Read & Write or Read & Write & Export permission by placing the cursor over the folder.



2.- Let's try to add folders with files at once. Right-click on **"Schedules"** folder and select **"Import Folder"** option from context menu. Then follow the steps given in the topic **6.3.2** in this document. After added the folders (files included), the subfolder and top folders will show an arrow up (red color) which are ready to be uploaded to the server to further revision.




3.- Right-click the imported folder on project directory and select **"Commit"** option. You can also go to the top of the **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel and click **"Commit"** button.



4.- The **"Commit"** dialog box will be shown, in here you can add a message regarding to files adding or modifications done, so project administrator and other disciplinary teams can get the latest version uploaded to the server. You can also check or uncheck folders and files before being committed. Press **"Commit"** button to start uploading folders and files selected.

essage:							
Added Schedule Subfolder Added Beams, Doors, Other Components, Walls and Windows Subfolder Added their respective Drawing, PDF and Excel files	*						
	Ŧ						
nange List:							
Path	Status						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Beams Excel.xlsx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Availables.dwx     ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Excel.xlsx							
🖉 ] ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.pdf	Add						
🗹 🚺 ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.xlsx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/	Add						
🗹 🚺 ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Excel.xlsx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Type.dwx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx	Add						
ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Type.dwx	Add						
< [	- F						
elect/Deselect All Commit	Cancel						
	_						

5.- The **"Commit"** dialog box will process and upload to server all folders and files previously selected. The process will be successful if at bottom of processing list appears **"Done"**. Press **"Close"** button to exit dialog box. Notice at Collaboration Explorer panel, all arrows up (red color) of top folder and subfolders have been dismissed, sign of successful uploading process.

Operation	File
Command	Update to revision 'HEAD'
Fetching content	Please wait
Done	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Beams Excel.xlsx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Availables.dwx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Excel.xlsx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.pdf
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.xlsx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Excel.xlsx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Type.dwx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Type.dwx
Done	
٠	

Collaboration Explorer	д×
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	
Iadmin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	•
Elevations	
East	
North	
South	
West	
⊢ 🕞 - 🕞 Floorplans	
Schedules	
□ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Beams	
Beams Excel.xlsx	
Structural Beams.dwx	
📄 🗁 Doors	=
Doors Availables.dwx	
Doors Excel.xlsx	
🖻 🗁 Other Components	
More Components Excel.pdf	
More Components Excel.xlsx	
🖨 🗁 Walls 	
Walls Type.dwx	
in I Wais Type.dwx	
Windows Excel.xlsx	
Windows Type.dwx	
Sections	
ElectricalPlans	
Levell	
Level2	
InteriorDesign	
📩 🗁 Plumbing and Pining	*

# 8. Understanding Update and Refresh Process

Refresh process refers to tracking changes in the state of files and folders on the server. Update process refers to update the local file to the latest version on the server. The refresh of file and folder status is automatic. When it is detected that a file or folder has been added or deleted on the server, the status of the file or folder will be indicated in the file list, and a bubble will pop up in the status bar to prompt to refresh. Whether to update, users can choose to update immediately or turn off notifications and update the specified folder or file as needed. The refresh interval time can be set in the options dialog box.

### 8.1. Update Current Project Directory

GstarCAD Collaboration System offers two methods to update current project directory: update manually and automatically. The default update status is on, that is when the system detects there is a file modification, it will pop up message to ask you whether update.



Users can choose to temporarily turn off the update prompt and manually update themselves. If you don't want to pop up the update notification prompt and want to trigger the update manually, you can click the status button to turn off the update notification.

### 8.2. Update Current Project Directory Manually

After a common or power user committed (uploaded from its workstation) folders and files to server, if you are project administrator, team leader or just a participant member, and you want to see the latest files or folders update within project directory, follow the next steps;

1.- Login, checkout, load and deploy the project directory from server to GstarCAD Collaboration Client through **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel. It is recommended to refer topic **4 Loading a Project from Server to Client Platform** on this document.



Level1

🛅 InteriorDesign

Level2 آ…اً ۱۰۰۰ Structurina

Plumbing and Piping

A Update notification is off

🐵 ᆒ 🏆 🗮 🧮 🍢 GstarCAD

2.- Click **"Update"** button located at top of **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel. Optionally, if you were working on current project, you will get an **"Update Notification"** at status bar. Click **"Update"** to confirm and finish downloading process.



3.- The **"Update"** dialog box will download all folders and files from server. The process will be successful if at bottom of processing list appears **"Done"**. Press **"Close"** button to exit dialog box.

Image: Content of the state of th	Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙	Drawing1.dwg ×
Image: Sections       Image: Sections         Image: Sections       Added         Image: Added       ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/         Added       ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Schedules/Wals         Image: Added       ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Wals         Image: Added		Update
Added     ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx       Added     ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Type.dwx       Done     Checking out: 16/16 processed		Command Update to revision 'HEAD' Fetching content Please wait Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Ober Components/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/ Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Wals/Walls Type.dwx Added ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Type.dwx

4.- Notice at Collaboration Explorer panel, you can deploy the new folder tree to see all subfolders and files attached.



### 8.3. Configuring Refresh Interval for Synchronous and Asynchronous

### **Collaboration Method**

As common or power user, you can setup update (download) interval for current project directory that you are working with automatically. You can determine how fast the server will transfer and download data with a single option depending on the collaboration method in which users are working.

1.- Go to "Collaboration" tab at ribbon and press "Option" command or just type in "Option" on command line.



2.- In **"Options"** dialog box, under **"Collaboration Setting"** dialog box, you can find two options under collaboration settings title;

互 Options									×
Current profile:		< <unnamed i<="" td=""><td>Profile&gt;&gt;</td><td></td><td>Current drawing</td><td><b>]</b>:</td><td>Drawing</td><td>g1.dwg</td><td></td></unnamed>	Profile>>		Current drawing	<b>]</b> :	Drawing	g1.dwg	
User Preferences	Draw	Selection set	Profiles	Cloud store	age sync settings	Collaborati	on Setting		4 🕨
Collaboratio	n setting	s	1	_				7	7
Refresh ir	nterval:	1	Minute(	(s)	Collaboration	n interval :	10	Second(s)	

**Refresh interval:** This option allows configure update (download data from server to current project loaded on user's pc) interval in minutes. The current project directory will be refreshed automatically with the latest folder or file version uploaded from another user to sever. **Refresh interval option works only for asynchronous collaboration method.** 

**Collaboration interval:** This option allows configure update (download data from server to current project loaded on user's pc) interval in seconds. A referenced drawing file used for one user will be refreshed automatically with latest modification saved by the owner of the referenced file. **Collaboration interval option works only for synchronous collaboration method.** 

3.- If you input 1 minute for refresh interval option, the current project directory you are working will be automatically updated with the latest folders or files modifications submitted to server by other project members just in one minute. The project directory will be refreshed with the latest modifications automatically, folders and files successfully downloaded to project will show an arrow up (red color).

Collaboration Explorer	ф.	×
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	`	/
<pre>[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)  ArchReferences  Elevations  Elevations  North  South  West  Schedules  Schedules  ElectricalPlans</pre>		
Level1 Level2 InteriorDesign Plumbing and Piping Level1 Level1 Level2 Structuring		



#### File or Folder Status after Refresh

**Modified File:** If there is an update version, an icon **↓** will mark on the file icon.

**Deleted File:** If the file is deleted in the server, an icon **× ICON-DEL.ico** will be added on file icon in local computer. If you already modified this file and need to save the file, you can rename or move this file to another folder before update.

**Deleted Folder:** if the folder is deleted in the server, an icon **× ICON-DEL.ico** will be added on file icon in local computer. If you already modified this folder and need to save the folder, you can move this files in the folder to another folder before update.

New File or Folder Added: Newly added files, folders (including renamed files and folders) on the server are

added to the local file tree, showing the added tags: **ICON-ADD.ico** Since these files and folders are not available locally, you cannot do anything with these files and folders. If you need to use new text or folders locally, you can choose to update all or a higher-level folder. There is also a difference in the icon for adding files. If you already handled the files or folders, the mark icon will be cleared. If the new added file or folder up level was renamed or moved, the new added file icon and status will not keep, the modified folder will display new added status, but you need to commit again.

4.- Additionally, at same time you will receive an update notification message at status bar. To confirm the update status process, click **"Update"** button to call the **"Update"** dialog box. From the dialog box, press **"Close"** button to exit. Then all red arrows will be dismissed from folder and files.

_		Collaboration Explorer	ф×
New com	aboration X mit is detected. Do you want to update you project now?	Image: Second	~
Update		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	^
		🖨 🗁 ArchReferences	
	🚳 ᆒ 🖓 🗮 🗂 😽 GstarCAD	Elevations	
		East	
		North	
		- South	
odate		- West	
		□ ····································	
Operation	File	Site	
- Command	Update to revision 'HEAD'	Schedules	
etching content	Please wait		1
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/	🖻 🗁 Schedules	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/	🖨 🗁 Beams	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Beams Excel.xlsx	Beams Excel.xlsx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx	Structural Beams.dwx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/	Doors	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Availables.dwx	Doors Availables.dwx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Doors/Doors Excel.xlsx	Doors Excel.xlsx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/	The second se	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.pdf	🖹 🗁 Other Components	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Other Components/More Components Excel.xlsx	More Components Excel.pdf	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Walls/	More Components Excel.xlsx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Excel.xlsx	🖮 🗁 Walls	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Walls/Walls Type.dwx	Walls Excel.xlsx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/	Walls Type.dwx	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Excel.xlsx	→ Windows	
Added	ArchReferences/Schedules/Schedules/Windows/Windows Type.dwx		
Done		Windows Excel.xlsx	
		Windows Type.dwx	
c	>	Sections	1 III
		ElectricalPlans	
necking out: 16/16	processed Close	Level1	
		Level2	

# 9. Understanding Revert Process

### 9.1. Revert Process Applied to Files on Project

#### Directory

The **"Revert"** option in GstarCAD Collaboration System allows go back and load to local pc a file version previously saved and uploaded in the server. The process is simple, a user saves and uploads a file from project directory (local pc) to server, the server stores the file, next time the same user can call back the stored file.

Different file formats (dwx, pdf, excel, image, etc..) can be reverted in case a user is not satisfied with the current file version is working with. Before using revert option, its recommended that common or power user gets right folder permissions assigned for project administrator.



### 9.2. Example of Revert Option Applied to Files on Project Directory

1.- Let's add a file to a subfolder, make sure you got right permission for subfolder. Right-click the subfolder and select **"Add File"** option. Then search and select an image file, press **"Close"** button from **"Add File"** dialog box.

Collaboration Explorer	₽ × <mark>/ Drawing1</mark>	
🚺 🛃 🖬 🖬 🕼		
[admin:ArchitecturalSam]		G Select File
	Ample](192.168.0.251)  New Drawing  New Reference Rule  New Subfolder  Add File  Import Folder	Look in: GatarCAD Collaboration Client User Guide History History Favorites Favorites Compared and State Plan 0.jpg Compared and State Plan 0.jpg Compared and State Plan 0.jpg Compared and Compared
Plumbing and Pipi     Structuring	Export         Rename         Delete	Desktop         File name:         Site Plan Sketch for Approval.jpg         Open           Network         Files of type:         All Files(".")         Cancel
	Show Log       Update       Commit       Revert	Locate Find File

2.- The file added is ready to be committed. Right-click the subfolder or image file and select **"Commit"** button. You must type a meaningful message for project administrator or team members participating on the project. Then press **"Commit"** button to start uploading the file.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙	Drawing
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.2 $\vee$	G Commit X
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251) ArchReferences Elevations East North South West Floorplans Stee Stee Schedules Schedules Elevations ElectricalPlans ElectricalPlans ElectricalPlans Plumbing and Piping Structuring Commit. Revert	

3.- Now you can modify and save the changes before uploading to server. Right-click the image file and select **"Open"** option. A default application will open the file, so you can make modifications and save it.



4.- After saving the image file, it will show a red arrow up which is ready to be uploaded to server, but somehow you have noticed some erroneous modifications done to the file by yourself. If you don't want to waste time deleting each modification done, just go back to **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, search the image file, right-click it and select **"Revert"** option from context menu.



5.- In **"Revert"** dialog box, the image file is checked by default, press **"Revert"** button. Then press **"Close"** button to confirm the process and exit the dialog box.

G Revert	×	Revert	
Path 🗹 🏹 ArchReferences/Floorplans/Site/Site Plan Sketch for Approval.jpg	1	Operation Command Reverted Done	File Revert ArchReferences/Floorplans/Site/Site Plan Sketch for Approval.jpg
	1		
Select/Deselect Cance	4	<	Close

6.- Notice the red arrow up will be dismissed from the image file on the collaboration explorer. You can open the file and verify if it is like before.



### 9.3. Revert Files with Trash Window Option

1.- For example, you can select one or more files from a folder or subfolder, right-click any selected file and click **"Delete"** option from context menu.



2.- To recover or restore deleted files, go to top of project tree and right-click it. Then select **"Trash Window"** option.



3.- In **"Trash Window"** dialog box, you can select all deleted files from list. Then click **"Revert"** button to open the **"Revert"** dialog box. Finally, press **"Close"** button to finish the process.



4.- The **"Trash Window"** dialog box will be empty. All files have been restored or reverted under their respective folder.

admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251) 🗸 🗸	Path:	trash://		Ġ	🗢 🕄 📴		C
(admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)     ArchReferences     Elevations     Floorplans     Evell     Floorplan Level 1.dwx     Evel2     Site     Schedules     How I calculate Budget.mp4     How I calculate Budget.mp4     How I calculate Sudget.mp4     References.dwx     GSchedule Calculation.xlsx     Schedule Modifications.pdf	Nan e	/	Source location	Deleted Date	Size	Proje	Modified Date
Schedule Pic1.jpg							

5.- From **"Trash Window"** dialog box, you can also definitely delete selected files or even send them directly to recycle bin.

h: trash://			Ċ,	🤹 🔁 🖳 i	Î	(
me	1	Source location	Deleted Date	Size	Proje	Modified Date
Budget worksheet fo	r house.png	/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	316.13 KB	png	2018/10/19 13:27
Building Offices Section	n.dwx	/ArchReferences/Sections	2018/10/19 13:58	1.37 MB	dwx	2018/10/19 13:20
Building Section.dwx		/ArchReferences/Sections	2018/10/19 13:58	424.74 KB	dwx	2018/10/19 13:20
How I calculate Budg	et.mp4	/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	7.84 MB	mp4	2018/10/19 13:27
How I do.png		/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	57.34 KB	png	2018/10/19 13:27
Longitudinal Section.c	lwx	/ArchReferences/Sections	2018/10/19 13:58	637.25 KB	dwx	2018/10/19 13:20
References.dwx		/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	420.52 KB	dwx	2018/10/19 13:27
Schedule Calculation.	dsx	/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	8.01 KB	xlsx	2018/10/19 13:27
Schedule Modification	s.pdf	/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	641.93 KB	pdf	2018/10/19 13:27
Schedule Pic1.jpg		/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	369.45 KB	jpg	2018/10/19 13:27
Site Plan.jpg		/ArchReferences/Schedules	2018/10/19 13:58	158.62 KB	jpg	2018/10/19 13:27

# 10. Files Version Management

If you've ever worked with a reliable CAD drafting software, participating on a project documentation and sharing a single drawing file with colleagues, you know this pain: someone takes the first pass (**drawing.dwg**), then emails it to everyone. The next person does the same, as does the third, each tacking a revision (**drawing\_rev3.dwg**) to the file's name. The project manager approves what he or she sees and tags it as complete (**drawing\_final.dwg**) ... until last-minute changes come along (**now\_really\_final drawing.dwg**). Now imagine changes like this in dozens of no only drawing files but other file formats added into the project to be revised.

GstarCAD Collaboration System is more powerful than e-transmit and sheet set manager features together, it solves files version management with **"Show Log"** option. Show Log process is similar as revert option but this time the server will show all files and folders committed (either by common or power user type) from beginning of the project. Users have the power to go back into the file's history and load, revise or retrieve past versions.

## **10.1.Show Log Applied for Files Only**

Let's see how to call any previous drawing version uploaded from on project directory to server by using show log option.

1.- For example, if you've created and saved a drawing or any other file under an authorized folder or subfolder, then the file is in ready to be committed status (red arrow up). Right-click the file and select **"Commit"** button. In **"Commit"** dialog box, enter a proper message and press **"Commit"** button. Then press **"Close"** button to finish uploading process.



2.- Notice the red arrow up is dismissed after file committed. You can add, create, modify and save same or more drawings or any other files under same subfolder. Repeat **"Commit"** process mentioned above and write a proper message that later will be read by project administrator and other teams.



3.- Make sure to close the file you've modified, saved and committed to server. Then select drawing file and click **"Show log"** option from context menu.



4.- In **"Log messages"** dialog box, you can see drawing's file commit record list. This list is ordered by author, date and information (message previously entered before committing the file). You can also see an empty space box as well as path and operation tab blank cells.

Author	Date	Information							
admin	2018-10-15 15:57:18	North Elevation NE d	rawing mo	dified.Windo	ws hatches a	and plants	blocks d	eleted d	ue to p
admin	2018-10-15 15:55:34	Nort Elevation NE dra	wing modi	ified.Teams v	where asking	to add NT	P lines, I	evels of	buildir
admin	2018-10-15 15:52:57	North Elevation NE d	rawing mo	dified.Accord	ding to PM, o	do not show	w facade	hatch f	or ext v
admin	2018-10-15 15:31:00	All stakeholders, PA a	nd teams;I	have added;	North Eleve	ation NE d	rawing.P	lease re	vise it A
<									>
<									>
< Path		Operatio	on						>
		Operatio	on						>

5.- Let's select an early date submission by time (under date list) to go back and load the first version committed. Then the empty space fox will be filled with drawing commit information, under path tab will show drawing file path on project directory, and what kind of operation has been committed. After selected, right-click the file version and click **"Revert to this version"** option. In **"Checkout"** dialog box, click **"Close"** button to finish the loading process.

Log Messa	ages							×		
Author admin admin admin admin	Date 2018-10-15 15:57:18 2018-10-15 15:55:34 2018-10-15 15:52:57 2018-10-15 15:31:00 ers. PA and teams:	Nort Elevation NE d North Elevation NE	rawing modified.1 drawing modified	Feams whe According	hatches and plants bl rre asking to add NTP g to PM, do not show ath Eleveation NE dra Revert to this revis	lines, lev facade h wing.Ple	els of b atch fo	uildir r ext v		
Please revise Path	North Eleveation NE drawi it ASAP to continue buildir ces/Elevations/North/Nort	ng documentation.	Operation Add		Checkout Operation Command Fetching content	File Revert Please		on 'bd89	95a9a'	
	-	-			Updated Done	ArchRe	ference	s/Elevat	ions/North/North Elevation NE.dv	vx
					< Checking out: 1/1 pr	ocessed				Close

6.- Notice the drawing file will be in red arrow up status, so the file can be committed again. Double-click the file to open it. Now you can see the drawing file version as it was from the beginning, when it has been uploaded for first time.



### 10.2. Show Log Applied for Folder, Subfolder or Project tree Directory

1.- For example, if you've added, modified and committed subfolders or files to server. You can right-click a subfolder or the top of project tree and select **"Show Log"** option. In **"Show Log"** dialog box you can see the list of files and folder committed since very beginning of project directory. You can follow the steps above to call back a previous file or folder version.

Author		Date	Information			
llaboration Explorer	џх	-10-15 16:15:37	NE Plan Reference subfolder addedNE Projection View subfolder addedNorth Elevation NE su			
		-10-15 16:13:01	NE Plan Reference drawing modified.ID Team (Interior Design Team) requested delete blocks			
		-10-15 16:09:40	NE Plan Reference drawing reloaded Local machines shut down casually.Uploading drawing f			
dmin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	~	-10-15 15:57:18	North Elevation NE drav 🕑 Revert to this revision 🛛 🛛 ants blocks deleted due to plot			
admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)		-10-15 15:55:34	Nort Elevation NE drawing modified. Teams where asking to add NTP lines, levels of buildings			
- ArchReferences	New Drawing	-10-15 15:52:57	North Elevation NE drawing modified. According to PM, do not show facade hatch for ext wal			
Elevations	New Reference Rule	-10-15 15:51:30	NE Plan Reference added.Teams revise it ASAP			
East		-10-15 15:48:13	NE Projection View file has been added.Stakeholders revise it ASAP.			
🖨 🗁 North	🕞 New Folder	-10-15 15:31:00	All stakeholders, PA and teams;I have added; North Eleveation NE drawing.Please revise it AS/			
NE Plan Reference	🗅 Add File	-10-15 09:28:46	Site Plan Sketch for Approval image file added to Site subfloder.ArchReferences (Project Man			
NE Projection View	🚉 Import Folder	-10-15 09:13:36	Image deleted from Site subfolder			
North Elevation NE     NE Plan Reference.dwx	Export Folder	-10-12 17:19:22				
	🔓 Show Log	-10-12 17:18:46	Site PLan Image delete due to new modifications			
North Elevation NE.dwx		-10-12 17:12:47	Site Plan image revolud annotation done!			
- South		-10-12 17:06:24	Site Plan Sketch for Approval commited, PA and TM revisions asap			
🗋 West	Commit	-10-12 15:18:57	Commiting files added to Schedules subfolderUpdate project asap			
Floorplans	🔒 Revert	-10-12 15:13:40	deleted			
🗄 🛅 Schedules	to Resolve Conflicts					
Sections	Trash Window(T)					
ElectricalPlans						
InteriorDesign	Login		Operation			
Plumbing and Piping	🔄 Logout 'admin'	Reference.dwx	Modify			
succomg	Change the passwo	ord(P)	Moully			

# **11. Conflict Processing**

During project life cycle, the project manager, administrator, main stakeholder or team leader, with power user type and right folders permissions, can change part of project directory without notice. Other team members with right folders permissions may not notice the project directory changes done due to update interval setup on local workstation. The process of modifying project directory subfolders and files could create a conflict between project team members.

Let's see a general example how to solve conflicts of folders or files modified on project directory between multidisciplinary teams. Follow the next steps.

1.- For example, at first instance, your project administrator creates a subfolder, adds a drawing file to it, and commits folder and file to server.

Collaboration Explorer	# × Structural Beams.dwx ×
Image: Second State     Image: Second State       Imag	
ArchReferences	
Elevations	🖸 Commit 🛛 🕹 🛤
- C East ⊕-C North - C South - C West	Message: Structuring>Beams subfolder added Beams-> Structural Beams file added Structuring team workout on file added from Project Administrator without restrictions
<ul> <li>☐ Floorplans</li> <li>☐ Sections</li> <li>④ ① ElectricalPlans</li> </ul>	Modifications without notice can be applied by PA
InteriorDesign     Plumbing and Piping	Change List:
Plumbing and Piping     Porturning     Porturning     Structural Beams.dwx	Change Est: Path ✓ ↓ Structuring/Beams/ ✓ ↓ Structuring/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx <
	Select/Deselect All

2.- You as team member (whether power or common user type with right permission on authorized folder) update or download the latest project directory modification committed by the project administrator.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙				Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙
	Update			
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)		File		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	Operation Command	Update to revision 'HEAD'		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)     □
ArchReferences	Fetching content	Please wait		Elevations
Elevations	Added	Structuring/Beams/		🛅 East
East	Added	Structuring/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx		I North
	Done			South
South				West ⊕⊡ Floorplans
West S				Sections
Floorplans Permission: Re				ElectricalPlans
Sections Commission Re				InteriorDesign
ElectricalPlans				Plumbing and Piping
InteriorDesign				
Plumbing and Piping				Level1
Level 2	•	III		Beams
Level1	Checking out: 2/2 pro	ocessed	Close	Structural Beams.dwx
Structuring	2		Close	

3.- At second instance, the project administrator deletes the folder (drawing file included) created without notice and commit the modification with its respective message for other team members.

Collaboration Explorer	ф ×	
📫 🗐 🕯 📭 📑 🔐		
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168	3.0.251) 🗸	
(admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.16) ArchReferences Elevations East North South West Floorplans Sections	58.0.251)	Commit ×
Sections     ElectricalPlans     InteriorDesign     Plumbing and Piping     Structuring     Beams     Structural Beams.dvx	New Drawing           New Reference Rule           New Subfolder	Change List:  Path Structuring/Beams/ Structuring/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx
	<ul> <li>Add File</li> <li>Import Folder</li> <li>Export</li> <li>Rename</li> <li>Delete</li> <li>Show Log</li> <li>Update</li> <li>Commit</li> <li>Revert</li> </ul>	Select/Deselect All

4.- But currently, you are working on folder and drawing file the project administrator committed at first instance because you didn't receive the latest update notification from the server due to update interval setup. You open, modify and save the drawing file to finally commit modifications to server.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 🔍 🗙	Structural Beams.dwx X	*
(admin:ArchitecturalSample)(192.168.0.251)	and a dear	
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)     ☐    ☐    ☐    ☐    ☐    ☐    ☐	G Commit	
East     East     South     South     West     Floorplans	Message: Structural Beams drawing file modified	
	Project Admin please revise it asap. Change List:	
Plumbing and Piping     Level 2     Level     Level1	Path           Image: Construction of the structure of the st	rams.dwx
Beams		, /05//////
	ierence Rule cto color	Commit Cancel
Renam Delete Show L		
Update		
	e with latest revision	
-2491.4743, 34551.9902, 0 🔂 Compa	e with specified revision 🧋 🥩 🕄 💭 🔚 🙏 1:1 × 🍌 🖄 🔟 🐂	🐵 🔐 🖓 👼 🗂 🐓 GstarCAD

5.- In committing process, you will get a message can't commit due to error conflict state. Press **"Close"** button to exit dialog box. Notice the main folder, subfolder and file deleted from project administrator at second instance will show two arrows (red and green) confronted, sign of conflict state.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙		
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)	Commit	
[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)     ☐-	Operation	File
Elevations	Command Fetching content	Update to revision 'HEAD' Please wait
East	Conflicted	Structuring/Beams/Structural Beams.dwx
South	Error Aborted	One or more files are in a conflict state and need to be resolved first
Floorplans	Aborted	
ElectricalPlans		
InteriorDesign     Flumbing and Piping	•	4
Level 2	Checking out: 1/1 pr	ocessed Close
- 🕞 Level1		
🗄 🚌 Beams		
Structural Beams.dwx		

6.- To solve that problem, right-click the subfolder or file conflicted and choose **"Resolve Conflicts"** option from context menu. In **"Conflict Resolve"** dialog box, you can choose a convenient option;

**Consistent with the server, the local conflict is cleared directly:** This option allows to fix the user's local repository conflict according to current project directory structure loaded to server by project administrator.

**Ignore server state:** This option preserves the current project directory state of user's local repository. The previously project directory state loaded to server by the project administrator will be replaced.

**Check and handle conflicts manually:** This option allows manually set a solution of each file or folder conflicted on the project directory.



**Return, do not resolve the conflict:** This option allows to return to current project state of user side and do not resolve the conflict to server.

7.- If you've received an urgent notification from project administrator to update project directory asap, you can select the first option of conflict resolve list. Make sure to close the drawing file you were working. Then go to "Update" button at collaboration explorer, or right-click the folder or file conflicted.



8.- The user's project directory will be updated taking reference the project administrator project directory uploaded to server. Done! The conflict is resolved.

		Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 💈
_		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)
odate		[admin:ArchitecturalSample](192.168.0.251)
Operation	File	ArchReferences
Command	Update to revision 'HEAD'	Elevations
Fetching content Deleted	Please wait	East
Deleted	Structuring/Beams/	😥 🔂 😥 💼 💼 North
		🗁 South
		West
		Sections
∢		ElectricalPlans
hecking out: 1/1 pr	ocessed	e InteriorDesign
		Plumbing and Piping
		Level 2
		Level1
		Structuring

# 12. All About Drawing File Reference and Reference Rules

In GstarCAD Collaboration System a reference drawing consists of information accessible to all project team members that provides a consistent set of drawing standards and best practices. The mission of the reference drawing is to provide an asset base that projects can draw from at the beginning of the project lifecycle and add to at the end of the project.

For example, an architect may face different problems with multidisciplinary teams like MEP (Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing) like unknowledge of some MEP users of not know how to use paperspace and x-refs costs architects a lot of downtime and money. Claiming that it takes many hours to make changes because they don't know how to x-ref is not much of an excuse. Not with liability hanging over everyone's heads. For the most part good CAD work normally leads to good documentation. Bad documentation leads to lousy bids, problems during construction, lawsuits and a bad reputation.

With GstarCAD Collaboration System, all project members work in a unified collaboration environment having many advantages when working with reference drawing files:

- Coordinate your work with the work of others by referencing other drawings in your drawing to keep up with the changes being made by other designers.
- Ensure that the most recent version of the referenced drawing is displayed. When you open your drawing, each referenced drawing is automatically reloaded, so it reflects the latest state of the referenced drawing file.
- Apply reference rules for referenced drawing files, so team members will get just what they need to start working immediately.
- Keep the names of layers, dimensioning styles and text styles in your drawing separate from those in referenced drawings.
- Bind attached referenced drawings permanently with your current drawing when the project is complete and ready to be archived.
- Better communication when sharing reference files. Once you establish a report with other team members and they understand your needs? this will make the whole process smoother.

## 12.1. Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference

#### **Rules**

1.- If you want to start working from scratch, based on existing drawing file (in project directory) as reference. Make sure if the folder you are working has right permissions. Then you can add a new subfolder and create a new drawing file.



2.- Meanwhile the empty drawing file is open, do right-click the drawing file you want as reference and select **"Reference"** option. In **"Insert Reference"** dialog box, you can setup scale, insertion point and rotation parameters to drawing file to be inserted.



3- If there is no special need, you can directly insert the reference drawing according to the original coordinates by pressing **"OK"** button, but this time you can test scale option by entering a new scale value. The reference drawing only supports proportional scaling, so you cannot set the scale for each axis separately. As soon as the reference is inserted, it will be attached under the current file you are working.



## 12.2. Changing Reference Drawing Color

1.- If you are not satisfied with referenced drawing original color displayed in working space, you can change it easily. Go to **"Collaboration"** panel and click **"Options"** icon, another way is doing click on **"Options"** button located at top of collaboration explorer panel, or just type in **"Options"** command to call its dialog box. Notice the default color for inserted reference file is gray.



2.- Click gray color to open the color selector window, select other color you like, press **"OK"** button, then click **"Apply"** button to apply the changes. Then Press **"OK"** button to close dialog box.

Options	< <unnamed pr<="" th=""><th>ofile&gt;&gt; 🧔 Current</th><th>denuine. Des</th><th>vr Plan Leveign Sketch 1.dwx</th><th></th><th></th></unnamed>	ofile>> 🧔 Current	denuine. Des	vr Plan Leveign Sketch 1.dwx		
urrent profile: User Preferences Draw		Profiles Cloud storage sync :	-	-		
	Selection set	Tomes Cloud atorage synce	icturiga composition	Color settings		
Collaboration settings Collaboration settings	,	G Select Color		Current drawing	Added object	Before Modified
Refresh interval :	200	Index Color		Reference drawing	Deleted object	After Modified
		Index Color(ACI):		Reference settings		
Color settings				Nested reference expansion :	O Do not expand	Expand all
Current drav	ving			Display nested references in rule editor:	Yes	⊖ No
Reference de	rawing			Display mode of references :	Normal	⊖ Gray
Reference settings						
Nested reference e	xpansion :	Index color: 52	Red,Green			
Display nested refe	rences in rule ec					
Display mode of ref	erences:					
		Color: 52			ок	Cancel Apply Help
			ОК	Cancel Help		
		ОК	Cancel	Apply Help		
				61		

3.- Now you can right-click the drawing file currently open and select **"Ref change to Gray"** option. You will notice the changing color of reference drawing.



4.- If you want to revert the reference color back to original, do right-click the drawing file currently open and select **"Ref back to color"** option.



### 12.3. Reference Drawing Context Menu Options

By default, a reference file can't be moved, edited or even deleted from work area but you can perform some actions to it. If you right-click a reference drawing attached to a file, you will see different options;



- Expand: If the reference file has nested references, you can choose if the nested drawing need to be reference to the next level.
- Expand All: Only the first-level reference file has this function. If the referenced file has nested drawings, the user can choose whether to bring all the nested references included in the file together.
- Detach sub reference: To detach the nested drawing in next level, this feature only can be used in the first referenced file, once you found the nested reference is not correct, you can detach it.
- > **Hide:** Hide or show the referenced drawing in current drawing.
- **Move:** Changes the location of the reference drawing, it provides base point, target point and offset.
- Copy: Makes multiple copies of a reference drawing. The reference drawings in the reference list are also copied, and these reference drawings can be hidden and displayed separately.
- Mirror: Mirrors the reference drawing, select two points as the axis of symmetry. After the mirror action, if you want to keep the original reference, the reference list will add a new one.
- Detach: Only the reference drawing in first level can be deleted, the nested reference in next level couldn't be deleted, if you want to delete the nested, you need to open the original drawing to delete.

### 12.4. Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory with Reference

#### **Rules**

If you are a project administrator (power user type), you can create a reference rule of existing drawing file. The created reference rule file (\*.DRF) will be added under its reference rules folder that later can be committed to server and will be available for any participant of the project. Just follow the steps below.

1.- Make sure to open a new empty drawing file, then right-click the file you want to be referenced and select **"New Reference Rule"** option to show the **"Set Reference Rules"** interface.



2.- In **"Set Reference Rules"** tab, you can choose different options to hide unnecessary drawing objects to make cleanest drawing reference file.



3.- Click **"Pick Object"** icon from layer panel, then pick one object or make window selection get more objects. The selected objects (all objects that lie on selected layer) will be hidden from current reference rule drawing.



4.- Click **"Undo"** icon to revert previous action, then click **"Layer Setting"** icon from layer panel. The **"Layer Setting"** palette will pop up, you can uncheck available layers to be hidden at will.



5.- Click **"Undo"** icon to revert previous action, then click **"Preserve Window"** icon from window panel. You must specify by window selection what objects need to be preserved (visible) on current drawing. The non-selected objects (layer) will be hidden.



6.- Click **"Undo"** icon to revert previous action, then click **"Filter Drawing"** icon from drawing panel. In **"Exclusion Filters"** dialog box is same as **"Filter"** dialog box in GstarCAD, so you can filter what objects (by type and properties) need to be hidden on current drawing. If you want to filter objects quickly, click **"Select Object"** button, then select an object. After selecting, press **"Add to Filter"** button, all objects lie on same layer will be hidden. Press **"Apply"** button to confirm and exit.





7.- If you are satisfied with the reference rules applied to the drawing, select **"Save"** or **"Save as"** icon from file panel. Then enter a properly name and press **"OK"** button to confirm. Finally, press **"Close"** icon from file panel to exit from set reference rules interface. A new folder **"Reference Rules"** will be created on project directory tree containing the reference rule file.



8.- The reference rules folder and reference rule file are ready to be committed. Quickly press **"Commit"** button at top of collaboration explorer panel. Then enter a message for the participants who will use the reference rule file as base. Press **"Commit"** button to start uploading data to server.

Collaboration Explorer	P × Drawing3.dwg ×
😭 📰 📭 🗟 💽 🕻	G Commit X
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251 ArchReferences Elevations Floorplans Level1 Floor Plan Level 1.dwx Level2 Schedules Schedules ElectricalPlans Plumbing and Piping	Message: Interior Design, Electrical Plans, Plumbing and Piping teams. A new reference rule file was created under reference rules folder. Use it to start working as base of your drawing documentation. Any modification on reference drawing will be update automatically. Change List: Path Reference rules/ Reference rules/Floor Plan Level 1_Rule1.drf
Reference rules     Reference rules     Reference rules     Structuring	Select/Deselect All Commit Cancel

## 12.5. Importing a Reference Rule File into Current Drawing

1.- If you are a project participant, after project administrator commits a reference rule file to server, you must update the project directory to get the reference rules folder and its reference rule file attached.

Collaboration Explorer	ά×
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)	~
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.25)	1)
🗄 🗁 ArchReferences	
Elevations	
🚊 🗁 Floorplans	
🚊 🗁 Level1	
Floor Plan Level 1.dwx	
Level2	
🕀 💼 Site	
🖶 🛅 Schedules	
🗄 🛅 ElectricalPlans	
🗄 🗁 InteriorDesign	
Level 1	
🗄 💼 Plumbing and Piping 🛉	
🚊 🗁 Reference rules	
🗄 🖓 🛅 Structuring	
	I

2.- Create a new drawing on authorized subfolder you will work with. Right-click the subfolder and select **"New Drawing"** option. Enter a proper name and press **"OK"** button. The drawing file will be opened by default.

Collaboration Explorer	φ×	Level 1 IDS for Client Reviewing.dwx		×
Image: Second state sta				
Elevations     Floorplans     Level1     Level2     D-     Site     Schedules     Sections     ElectricalPlans				
InteriorDesign     InteriorDesign     InteriorDesign     Level 1     Level 1 IDS for Client Reviewing.dwx		New Drawing		
Level 1 IDS for Client Reviewing.dwx		New Reference Rule		
Reference rules		New Subfolder		
Floor Plan Level 1_Rule1.drf		Add File		
Structuring		mport Folder		
		xport		
	-	•		
		Rename		
	×	Delete		
	🔓 s	ihow Log		
	ີ 🕻 ເ	Jpdate		
	🕞 (	Commit		
	B F	Revert		

3.- While the drawing file is open, right-click a drawing (took for creating a reference rule file) you want to reference and select **"Reference"** option. In **"Insert Reference"** dialog box, make sure to select the reference rule file created by the project administrator. Additionally, you can set some options for reference file insertion. Then press **"OK"** button to confirm and exit.



4.- The reference rule file will be inserted under current drawing you are working with.



## 12.6. Opening a Reference Rule File whether as Common or Power User Type

1.- Before opening a reference rule file, it is mandatory to have the drawing file, which has been taken to make the reference rule file, loaded on current project. Right-click the reference rule file and select **"Open"** option. Then select its respective reference file from project tree and press **"OK"** button.



2.- The **"Set Reference Rules"** interface will pop up, you can apply new rules by hidden layers of selected objects at will.



# 13. Compare Versions of a Referenced Drawing File

When drawings drawn by other project members are referenced in your current opened drawing, if you want to know what is updated in the reference drawing, you can choose between two comparison options.

### 13.1. Compare Latest Revision of Drawing Reference

Whether you are common or power user, make sure you have right permissions on authorized folder you are working with, then refer to topic **12.1 Referencing a Drawing File on Current Project Directory without Reference Rules** in this file if you don't know how to reference a drawing file.

1.- Open the drawing file you want to insert a reference. Right-click the drawing file that will be referenced and select **"Reference"** option. Press **"OK"** button to finish and exit dialog box. The reference will be inserted successfully.



2.- Now you can start working based on the reference file, then you can save, commit it to server and close the drawing.


3.- Meanwhile, the drawing file you referenced is being modified by its corresponding team member. After modifications done, the user commits the modifications with a message sent to your team members.



4.- Now you can open again the drawing file. The reference will be update according to latest modification submitted by another team.



5.- If you want to see the latest changes or modifications made by another team on the referenced drawing, right-click the drawing you are working and select **"Compare with latest revision"**.

Collaboration Explorer			x x
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.25	51)	▼	
admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](19	160	0.251)	1
- C ArchReferences	lê	Open	
Elevations	2	Reference	
East	L 😤	New Reference Rule	And a second sec
I North		Ref back to color	- <u>177</u>
South		Export	
⊕     West     □     Floorplans	B.	Rename	
English Level	×	Delete	Linie Ran
Floor Plan Level 1.dwx	^	Delete	
	a	Show Log	
Site		Update	
Chedules		Commit	
Sections	L.	Revert	
ElectricalPlans	0	Compare with latest revision	
📄 🗁 InteriorDesign 🗾	-		
Evel1	Ð,	Compare with specified revision	
Level 1 IDS For Client Review			The second secon
Floor Plan Level 1	Leve	11 IDS For Client Reviewing.dwx	
Reference rules			1.H
Krickereice rules			+
			Daty has
	Laste	est vesion: 2018-10-22 12:01:20	
	Seve	r-side status: No change	

6.- Notice all colored objects that have been modified will be displayed on the reference drawing. At the same time, in the **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, the list of objects added, deleted, and modified will be displayed.



7.- In **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, you can expand one category to see all objects added, deleted, and modified previously.



8.- At top of **"Collaboration Explorer"** panel, there are several buttons that will be described below.



**1 Auto-zoom Display:** The auto zoom button is a switch that turns on the auto-zoom mode if pressed. When one or more objects are selected in the object list, the corresponding object in the drawing is automatically zoomed and displayed in the middle of the working area.



**2** Color Switch: Displays the objects added, modified or deleted in current drawing as monochrome, or original color.

		<u> 3</u> 8 (=	₽₽₽	3		Ð				
Confirm	Object	Tag		<b>—</b>		ť				
Circle			~					-		
Hatch —			— • II 🗆			e 11 <sup>44</sup> 20		ų _ ,	-	
Line ——			— • III			4	1. Alton (1997)			
MText —			— • III -		STREET	_				
Polyline -			— 🔺 📗		Tomo					
	Polyline	Delete								
	Polyline	Delete						]		
	Polyline	Delete								
	Polyline	Delete			Masler Plazm			]		
	Polyline	Delete		+						
	Polyline	Delete					_			
	Polyline	Delete			sching dami					
	Polyline	Delete				╜┿┿┿				
Rotated Di	mension		— • III							
Text			— • III.	Gand Phern			-1=2=			
				Queit Roam			1 1	 1 1	LL '' L	



**3 Previous and Next:** The **"Previous"** button switches to the last changed object in the list, and the object will be highlighted. If auto zoom is turned on, the auto zoom view will display the selected object to the center of the window. The **"Next"** button switches to the next changed object on the list.



**4 Confirm:** The so-called **"Confirm"** means that you have already understood the changes in the related drawings. There are two ways to confirm: one is to select one or more object types in the list and click the **"Confirm"** button; the other way is to select one or more objects in the list and click their checkbox. After confirming, the objects will disappear from the list and will no longer be highlighted with the set color and will return to the normal state.



**5 Confirm All and Exit:** Confirm that you have understood all the changes to the reference drawing. Exit to view the changes, restore the reference drawing to the state of the latest version, and retain the modifications to the drawing while viewing the changes.

Collaboration	n Explorer		ф Х	Level 1 IDS For Client Reviewing.dw	x ×
		🧏 🛂 (	) <b>()</b> ()	<u>^</u>	
Confirm	Object	Tag		, <b>Ť -</b>	<u>_ <sup>*</sup> - <sup>*</sup> _</u>
Circle				<u> </u>	
Hatch —			— • II	ttt	
Line ——			— • II		
MText —			•	©+ ††	
Polyline -			— • II		
	Polyline	Delete			
	Polyline	Delete		l®+ †≢ /───	
	Polyline	Delete			
	Polyline	Delete			



## 13.2. Compare an Specified Revision of Drawing Reference

The **"Compare with specified revision"** option is similar as **"Show Log"** function. For example, if one team member modifies, save and commits his/her drawing file each time another team member requires it, the server will store several drawing file versions previously uploaded by both team members.

1.- Open the drawing file you will work with, the right-click it and select **"Compare with specified version"** option to open the **"Log Messages"** dialog box.



2.- In **"Log Messages"** dialog box, you can select a drawing file version committed by another team member and calling back to compare that version with the current you are handling. Right-click the selected version, then select **"Compare"** option.

fp-alonso		
	2018-10-22 12:00:07	floor plan level 1 reference addec
fp-alonso	2018-10-22 10:01:10	IDS drawing empty 🔨 Compare(C)
fp-alonso	2018-10-22 09:37:55	Level 1 IDS For Client Reviewing ModifiedBlocks definition deleted. Start
fp-alonso	2018-10-19 17:05:12	Start working on reference, adding ID blocks to different rooms.
fp-alonso	2018-10-19 17:01:46	Floor Plan Level 1 reference attached to Level 1 IDS For Client Reviewing
admin	2018-10-19 16:57:54	From scratch
admin	2018-10-19 16:38:48	Adding ID blocks taking walls as reference
admin	2018-10-19 16:09:19	Restoring ID level 1 drawing file
fp-alonso	2018-10-19 15:57:04	Saved and committed
fp-alonso	2018-10-19 15:10:35	Reference attached to drawing change to its original color
C		>

3.- Then you can compare and see all modifications colored (added, deleted, modified) since the very beginning.



# 14. Real-time Collaboration Method

The real-time collaboration is based on synchronous collaboration method. Two or more participating members (same or different disciplinary teams with right permissions) can reference their drawing files to one another, allowing view and work upon the referenced drawing at same time in different client platforms. Any drawing modification done by a participant will be loaded to server automatically after saving it or setting up the collaboration update interval, avoiding press **"Commit"** button from the collaboration explorer each time saving a drawing file. What's more, the drawing file update time can be configured individually according to users need. Synchronous collaboration method speeds up blueprint completion between users at same time.

#### 14.1. Advantages of Real-time Collaboration Method

1.- **Clear Communication, Less Confusion** – Because once a drawing files are mutual referenced, you can see the changes made by each other in real-time. This visual communication is very powerful because it leaves little room for confusion. As anyone can instantly spot the modifications they can easily object to changes they don't like, it leads to much better communication and extremely easy to make decisions.

2.- **Save Time** – Real-time collaboration saves your time in so many ways. You can cut down the time spent on meetings because of visual communication. No need to go back and forth to meet clients because most things can be done online in a much more efficient manner. You can even save time spend on email communications because no need to have long email conversations, just reference a drawing file and work on it in real-time.

3.- **Accelerate Documentation** – Because two or more users can work making a single drawing from beginning to completion much faster instead one user finish it out of delivery deadline.

4.- **Increase Productivity** – It helps project members working at same environment to be more productive. Since everything is done online it's just a matter of connecting to the Internet or the Intranet.

5.- **Save Money** – A combination of all the factors mentioned above lead to a considerable amount of savings. Increased productivity is saved time and money.

### 14.2. Example of Real-time Collaboration Process

Before using the real-time collaboration tool, whether you are common or power user, make sure you and the member of another team to which you are going to reference his/her drawing file have right permissions on authorized folder you are working with. Follow next steps below.

1.- For example, if you finished to draw the first-floor walls of a building. Save the file and commit it to server with a specific message to another team member.

Image: State	Collaboration Explorer 📮 🗙	First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx
Image: Construction of the second	Image: Sections         Image: Sections	Commit  Message:  First Floor Level 1 Walls Permiter file ready to be committed. Structuring team, please refer my drawing file to start placing colums. The file upload will be modified according to Clients requierements.  Change List:  Path ArchReferences/Floorplans/Level 1/First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx  <

2.- Another team user must update the project directory to see the drawing file previously submitted.



3.- Then the user can create a new drawing under his/her authorized folder. Right-click the folder and select **"New Drawing"** option. The user must enter a proper name and done!



4.- The user must get your drawing file as reference to start working with. While the drawing file is open, the user must right-click your drawing and select **"Reference"** option. In **"Insert Reference"** dialog box, the user could set some insertion options at will. Then press **"OK"** button.



5.- The reference file has been inserted successfully. The user can start adding some objects, the save the file and commit it to server.

Collaboration Explorer 📮 🗙	First Floor Level 1 Columns.dwx 🗙	
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)	🗾 🖸 Commit 📃	× -
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)	Message:	5
ArchReferences	First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter added as reference file.	
Elevations	Floor plans team, ready to start real-time collaboration.	
Eloorplans		
First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx		
Level2		
	Change List:	5.1
Schedules	Path	
Sections     ElectricalPlans	Structuring/First Floor Level 1 Columns.dwx	
InteriorDesign		
Plumbing and Piping		
Reference rules		
Structuring	Select/Deselect All Commit Cancel	
First Floor Level 1 Columns.dwx 🔹		-

6.- Now you must update the project directory to see the drawing file of the other user. Now open your drawing file, right-click the other user file and select **"Reference"** option. In **"Insert Reference"** dialog box, the user could set some insertion options at will. Then press **"OK"** button.

Collaboration Explorer	imeter.dwx	<ul> <li>[admin:EcologicalHousing(</li> <li>ArchReferences</li> <li>Elevations</li> <li>Floorplans</li> <li>First Floor Level2</li> <li>Schedules</li> <li>Schedules</li> <li>ElectricalPlans</li> <li>InteriorDesign</li> <li>Plumbing and Piping</li> <li>Structuring</li> <li>First Floor Level 1 Co</li> <li>First Floor Level 2</li> </ul>	vel 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx
Reference rules     Structuring     First Floor Level 1 Columns.dwx	Reference Rules:	Scale Specify On-screen Scale: 1000 Block Unit Unit: Milimeters Factor: 1	Insertion Point Specify On-screen X: 0.00 Y: 0.00 Z: 0.00 Rotation Specify On-screen Angle: 0 OK Cancel



7.- Now both (you and the other user) are ready to start the real-time collaboration function. From **"Collaboration**" icon. The other user must click the same icon in his/her local pc.



8.- The other user can start drawing based on the referenced file (gray out by default). For example, the user can place some columns to intersected walls. After that, the user must save the file and upload it to server.



9.- You must update the project to see the reference file (gray out by default) modifications.



10.- Both you and the other user can streamline their work and download the latest changes made much faster than previously steps. Just type **"OPTIONS"** command to open the **"Options"** dialog box, under **"Collaboration Setting"** dialog box, you can find two options under collaboration settings title. You just need to input a lower value for **"Collaboration interval"** option. For example, you can input 3 seconds. Then click **"Apply"** button, and finally press **"OK"** button to confirm and exit.

Collaboration Explorer 🛛 📮 🗙 🗸	First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx 🔍	
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251) v	G Options	×
[admin:EcologicalHousingComplex](192.168.0.251)     ☐□	Current profile: <> a Current drawing: First Floor LevIs Perimeter.dw	κ.
Elevations	User Preferences Draw Selection set Profiles Cloud storage sync settings Collaboration Setting	••
Floorplans     Levell     First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter.dwx     Level2     First Floor Level 1 Columns     Level2     Site     Schedules     Schedules     DectricalPlans     InteriorDesign     Plumbing and Piping     Reference rules	Collaboration settings Collaboration settings Refresh interval: 1 Minute(s) Collaboration interval: 3 Second(s) Color settings Color settings Current drawing Reference drawing Deleted object After Modified	]
First Floor Level 1 Columns.dwx      First Floor Level 1 Walls Perimeter	Reference settings       Nested reference expansion:       Image: Instant of the set of the s	

11.- Now you can modify your drawing as needed. You don't need to click **"SAVE"** and **"COMMIT"** button either. The modification will be uploaded to server automatically, refreshing your project directory.



12.- The other user will see the modification of reference drawing after 3 seconds according to refresh interval set up previously.



13.- You and the other user can also compare between revisions. Refer to topic **13.2 Compare an Specified Revision of Drawing Reference** if you don't know how to compare with specified revision.



# **Glossary of Terms**

**-Project or Server Administrator:** A user who install GstarCAD Collaboration Server program to create and setup a project directory.

**-Power User Type:** User created and assigned by project administrator that can login and access to server through Collaboration Administration tool. This user can create a local project repository, add users, groups, assign roles and permissions.

**-Common User Type:** User created and assigned by project administrator that can only checkout or load a project by login to server. This user is not able to access to Collaboration Administration tool and neither create a local project repository.

**-Role:** Is one or more groups containing participant members created by the project administrator. Each group will accomplish specific functions during project life cycle. When a project directory (tree of folders and subfolders) is created, each group will be assigned to its respective folder.

**-Permission:** Is the action of officially allowing to a group created to do a specific thing; consent or authorization. The GstarCAD Collaboration System supports five kinds of permissions; Read-only, Read-only & Export, Read & Write, Read & Write & Export, Deny all.

**-Project Directory:** Are folders and subfolders created by project administrator within permission process just after created the roles (groups) for the project. The project directory will be downloaded from server and deployed to collaboration explorer panel after checkout process.

-Checkout: Browse and select available projects from server.

-Commit: Upload data from local machine to server, submit.

-Update: Download data from server to local machine.

-Show Log: User can access and call back files committed and stored from server.

-Reference Rule: Consists on hide unnecessary layers of a drawing file before being referenced.